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Havells Malta Limited

Report and consolidated financinl statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

Directors' report

The directors present lheir report on the audited i financia! of Havells Malta Limited (hereafter the ‘Company’) and the entities it controlied (hereafter the
‘Group’) at the end of, or during, the year from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 (hereafier the 'year') The comparatives in these financial statements are for the year from
1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012

The Company was incorporated on 19 February 2007 as a kmited kability pany in the Republic of Malta. The Company's registration number 1s C40825
Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the design. manuf; and distribution of lighting p . which include modular components, lamps and fixtures The Group s a
manufacturer of a wide variely of lamps and fixiures including i d fl pact fl t, HID (high intensity discharge), halogen, LED and special lamps
A light fixture or luminaire is an electrical device used to create artificial light A complete lighting fixture unit consists of the lamp, the reflector for directing the light, an aperture
{with or without a lens), the outer shell or housing for lamp alig P ion and design, a ballast, if required, and connection to a power source. The Group serves a
diverse infemational customer base and has seven manufacturing plants in seven countries

Review of business:

Main events in the year

2013 was ded d to focus on and preparing the Group for higher profitability and growth. The group launched i ive prodi in LED applicati while

winning several industry and critic awards A
In Latin America, the focus was on growth, mainly through expansion of product portfolio under LED and fixtures product

Consolidated Sales and Results
Sales for the continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2013 were € 428,641 (year ended 31 December 2012: €432,111). The profit for the financial year of €

1,982 (vear ended 31 December 2012 €36,970) will be transferred to reserves. The d do not d the pay of a dividend {2012 Nil)

Key performance indicators

Various KPIs are monitored at regional g level. The di ider the key KPis for the Group to be turnover, gross margin, net debt position and working capital
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

Tumover (€ '000s) 429,641 432,111

Gross margin 324% 32.1%

Net debt (€ '000s) 61671 73,138

Woarking capital (€000) 83,326 103,191

The decrease in working capital versus 2012 is primarily the result of a increase in trade and other payables due to improved credit terms with the supplier
The reduction in net debt leve! is dnven by the repayment of half yearly instaliment under term loan facility of € 77,500

Research and development

The main focus of the research and development activity is to provide significant new products in lamps and fixtures and enhancing existing products to maintain the Group’s
position as a leader in optimum lighting solutions The and lop costs charged to the income in the year to €6,091 (2012 €5,536)
Future developments

Despite the directors remaining cautious about the sustainability of the economic recovery in some ies, the di expect d d in the main markets and in emerging

markets to recover during 2014 To increase profitability, the Group continually seeks to drive product costs lower through introducing innovative higher margin products and a
number of cost reduction initiatives

The directors expect that the di of new p {particulary in LED and fixtures product range) should add to the overall sales growth and profitabilty of the group
Personnel and Organisation

The Group participates in varnious local and one pan-European works council and through these forums provide rel i ion to the employ Through these forums
the Group has regular } y with the employ and their rep ives to allow the views of the employees to be expressed on issues thal are likely to affect their

interests

The Group encourages diversity in its hiring and promating process and does not discriminate based on race, religion, sexual onentation, gender, age or disability or any other
quality except performance and success

The management of Havells Malta Limited would iike to thank its staff for their commitment and effort during the year
Insurance of directors .
The Group maintains i for and officers for general liabiiiies in respect of their duties as directors and officers of the Group.

Directors
At the date of this report the directors are Mr Anil Rai Gupta, Mr Ameet Kumar Gupta and Mr Bemard Zammit There were no changes in directors duning the year

Post balance sheet events
The details of the post balance sheet events are provided in Note 28

Auditors and di of i ion to

As far as the directors are aware, there is no rel audit ion of which the Company's auditors are The directors have taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of any re! audit i ion and to blish that the Company’s audi are aware of that information

The auditors, Emst & Young Malta Limited, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a Hution that they be reapp d will be prop at the Annual

General Meeting

By Order of the Board, )’g*h éb,)'o' Y

Anil Rai Gupta v Bemard Zammit
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The di are req by the C Adt, Cap. 388 of the Laws of Malta lo prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at the end of each reporting period and of the profit or {oss for that period
In preparing the the di are responsible for :
that the i have been drawn up in with Financial as
adopted by the EU;
ing and pprop ing policies,
making i i that are in the and
that the are prep on the going concem basis unless it is top that the Ci
and the Group will in as a going
The directors confimm that they have compiied with the above req in preparing the
The di are also for ing and internal control relevant to the preparation and the fair presentation of the financial

statements that are free from material misstaiement, whether due to fraud or emor, and that comply with the Companies Act, Cap. 388 of the Laws of Malta They are also

responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
imregularities.
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Report and lidated i ial for the year ended 31 December 2013

Consolidated Income statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Revenue
Sale of goods

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Selling expenses

General and administrative expenses
Net foreign exchange losses
Hyperinflation adjustment

Other income

Total selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating Profit before exceptional items
Exceptional items

Operating Profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Profit/{Loss) before tax

Income tax income/(expense)
Profit/{Loss) for the year

Attributable to :
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest#

Notes

17,19

19
17,19
17,19

18

21
21

16

2013
€000
429,641

(290,254)
139,387

(14,432)
(80,754)
(27,180)
(3.944)
(576)

2,180

(124,706)

14,681

14,681
73
{6,192)
8,562
(6,580)
1,982

1,982

1,982

2012
‘Restated*
€'000

432,111

(293,528)
138,583

(14,379)
{79,028)
(27.018)

{1,947)
(216)
173

(122,411)
16,172
25283
41,456

125
(8,389)
33,194

3,701

36,892

36,970
78
36,892

#The current year income attributable to non-controlling interest is € 0.015, therefore rounded off in the consolidated income statement
*Cartain numbers shown here do not correspond to 2012 financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed in note no 26

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financiat statements.



Havells Malta Limited
Report and tidated fi ial for the year ended 31 December 2013

Company income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Notes

General and administrative expenses
Other expenses
Operating Loss

Interest Income
Loss before tax

Loss for the year

All amounts are attributable to the owners of the parent.

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.

2013
€000

(12)

33
(48)

(45)

{45)



Havells Malta Limited
Report and lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 December 2013

Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Notes 2013 2012
Restated*
€000 €'000
Profit/{Loss) for the year 1,982 36,892
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit orloss
in subsequent periods
Actuarial losses and gains on retirement benefit 14 559 (3,391)
obligations
Income tax effect 5 (145) 1,025
414 (2,366)
Other compreh ive i tober ified to profit or ioss in
subsequent periods
Mark to Market on Interest rate swap 213 (643)
Income tax effect 5 (50) 161
163 {482)
Currency translation differences {6,699) -
Income tax effect - -
(6,699) -
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax {6,122) {2,848)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (4,140) 34,044
Attributabte to :
Owners of the parent (4,140) 34,122
Non-controlling interest - 78
(4,140) 34,044

*Certain numbers shown here do not correspond to 2012 financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed in note no 26

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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for the year ended 31 December 2013

Company statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income, net of tax

All amounts are attributable to the owners of the parent.

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements

2013
€000
(45)

s

2012
€000
(22)



Havells Malta Limited
Report and ¢ lidated fi inl for the year ended 3) December 2013

Consolidated statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2013

2013 2012 As at
1st
January,
2012
Notes Restated" Restated
€'000 €'000 €°'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 3 41,645 42,944 46,851
Intangible assets 4 32,283 32,610 32,248
Prepayments 5,120 575 1,093
Deferred tax assets 5 3,225 6,936 -
82,273 83,065 80,192
Current assets
Inventories 8 98,362 96,519 111,122
Trade and other receivables 6 107,150 113,665 115,947
Financial instruments 7 407 484 -
Prepayments 9,887 11,634 13.034
Cash and cash equivalents 9 18,786 15,139 7,955
235,592 237,341 248,058
Assets classified as held for sale - - 3,189
Total assets 31 7,865 320‘406 331,439
Equity and liabiiities
Equity
Called up issued share capital 10 141,258 141,238 102,818
Shareholders' contribution reserve - - 20
Cash flow hedge reserve {319) : {482) -
Currency translation reserve {10,779) {4.,080) (4.080)
Other reserves {10,283) {10,697) (8,331)
Hyperinflationary reserve 1,372 658 410
Accumulated losses (60,821) {62,803) {99.773)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 60,428 63,834 (8,936)
Non controlling Interest 13 13 91
Totai equity 60,441 63,847 (8,845)
Non-current iiabliities
Borrowings 12 57,339 58,751 67,313
Derivative financial instruments 7 430 643 1,711
Retirement benefit obligations 14 40,557 42,795 43,243
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 13 2,500 5,834 7,438
100,826 108,023 119,705
Current ilabilities
Trade and other payables " 125,362 113,757 132,262
Current income tax liabilities - - 3477
Borrowings 12 24,118 29,526 80,243
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 13 7.118 5,253 4,597
156,698 148,536 220,579
Total ilabilities 257,424 256,559 340,284
Total equity and liabliiities 317,865 320,406 331,439

*Certain numbers shown here do not corespond to 2012 financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed In note no 26

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements

he finincial statements were approved and authorised for issye and were signed by the directors on 2%. chw.uta. olY.

Aofl Rai Gupta Bemard Zammit



Havells Malta Limited
Report and ¢ lidated financial ts for the year ended 31 December 2013

Company statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2013

Notes 2013
€°'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiary 24 141,041
141,041
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 59
Total assets 141,100
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Called up issued share capital p 10 141,258
Retained earnings (187)
Total equity 141,091
Current liabilities ;
Trade and other payables 11 9
Total liabilities 9
Total equity and liabilities 141,100

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.

2012

€000

141.124
141,124

4
141!128

141,238
(122)
141,116
12

12

__ 141,128

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue and were signed by the directors on &.3 FJ«GI‘MW 70l "/-

v Stz | ‘

Anil Raifupla Sy Bernard Zammit

m



Havells Malta Limited
Report and lidated fi ial

Consolidated cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Operating activities
Profit before tax

Non cash adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation
Impairments
Amortisation
(Profit)/Loss on disposal of property, ptant and equipment
Finance costs
Reversal of provisions
Foreign exchange loss on operating activities
Hyperinflationary adjustment
Change in minority interest
Working capital adjustments

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayments

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash flow from operating activities
Interest paid
Interest received
Income taxes paid
Net cash fiows from operating activities

investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash flows used in Investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of redesmable preference shares
Proceeds from borrowings from banks

Repayment of borrowings to banks

Proceeds from loan from holding company

Repayment of loan to holding company

Finance lease capital payments

Net cash flows used in from financing activities

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Net foreign exchange differences
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash eq 1 at31D b
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)
Bank overdrafts (Note 12)

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.

for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013
€°'000

8,662
5,217
374

6,119

(1,200)

3,944
576

(6,971)
(3,666)
13,380
26,375
(4,777)
73
{4,275)
17,396

(5.144)
140
59

{5,063)

20
12,000
(17,037)

481
(6,498)

6,835

(787)
13,736

19,784

2012

€°'000

33,191

7,055
2,854
407
<
8,264
(2,643)
1,947
216
78

14,277
6,207
(22,816)
49,090
(7.820)
125

(7,148)
34,247

(6.441)

1,118
767

(6,090)

38,400
72,302
(109,140)
10,000
(23.400)
(7,242)
(19,080)

9,077

267
4,392

13,736

19,788 156,138
(2) (1,403)
19,784 13,736




Havells Malta Limited

Report and lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 December 2013

Company cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Operating activities

Loss before tax

Working capital adjustments
Trade and other payables

Net Cash flows used in operating activities

Net cash (used in)/g d from

p ing activities

Investing activities
Additional investment in subsidiaries
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable preference shares

Net cash flows from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equival: at31D (note 9)

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.

2013
€°'000

(45)

3
(48)

2012
€°'000

(22)

1
(1)

(11)

(38,400)
(36,400)

38,400

38,400

(1)
15
4
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Consolidated statements of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2013

As at 1 January 2012 Restated*

Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Hyper inflation adjustment
Total comprehensive income
Issue of preference shares
As at 31 December 2012
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Hyper inflation

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Attributable to the owners of the parent

Total comprehensive income
tssue of preference shares
As at 31 December 2013

Other reserves

Share Ci y Other Cash Flow Hedge Hyper Total Non- Total

capital Contribution losses transiation reserves# Reserve inflationary controliing  equity
Reserve reserve reserve Interest

€°000 €'000 €'000 €°'000 €'000 €°000 €°'000 €'000 €°'000 €°'000

102,818 20 199,773) (4,080) (8,331) - 410 18,936) 91 (8,345)

- - 36,070 - - - - 36,970 (78) 36,892

. - - - (2,386) (482) - (2,848) - (2.B48)

- . - B - - 248 248 . 248

102,818 20 (62,803) (4,080) {10,697) (482) 658 25434 13 25447

38,420 {20) - - - - - 38,400 - 38400

141,238 B (62,803) (4,080) (10,697) 1482) 658 63,834 13 63,347

- - 1,882 - - - - 1,982 - 1,082

- - - (6,899) 414 183 - {8.,122) - (6.122)

- - - - - - 714 714 - 714

141,238 - (60,821) (10,779) (10,283) (319) 1,372 80,408 13 60421

20 - - - - - - 20 - 20

141,258 - {60,821) (10,772) (10,283) 319) 1,372 60,428 13 60,449

# Other reserves constitute of actuarial gains/(losses) on increase/decrease in present value of pension abligation and fair value of plan assets due to change in actuaria!
assumptions on year on year basis.

*Certain numbers shown here do not correspond to 2012 financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed in note no 26

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Report and idated fi ial for the year ended 31 December 2013

Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Share  Shareholders' Retained Total
capital Contribution earnings
Reserve

€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
As at 1 January 2012 102,818 20 (100) 102,738
Loss for the year - - {22) (22)
Total comprehensive income 102,818 20 {122) 102,718
issue of preference shares 38,420 {20) - 38,400
As at 31 December 2012 141,238 - {122) 141,116
Loss for the year - - {45) {45)
Total comprehensive income 141,238 - (187) 141,071
Issue of preference shares 20 - - 20
c by - . - -
As at 31 December 2013 141,258 - {167) 141,091

The notes on pages 15 to 38 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Corporate information
The i of the Havelis Malta Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 Di ber 2013 were for
issue in with a of the di on 28 February 2014 . Havells Malta Limited (the C is a limited p and iled in Malta
and whose shares are not publicly traded. The registered office is located at 33 St Barbara Bastions, Valietta, VLT 1961, Matta.
The principal activities of the Group are the design, and ion of lighting which include modular components, lamps and fodures. information
on the Groups ultimate parent is presented in Note 27.
2.1 Basls of preparation
These are prep. in with ional Flnnnclal Repoiting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by me EU and the requirements of the
Companies Act 1995. The are prep under the ion, as modified by the of
The prise the of Havells Malta Limited and of its i in which it ises a interest and are
presented in Euros and all values are rounded fo the nearest thousand (€000) except where otherwise indicated.
The p i iat in with [FRS as adopted by the EU require the use of certain critical accounting estimates. i also requinas the d[rec(ors
to exsm&se their ]udqemenl In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas invoiving a high degree of or and
to the are di in Note 2 5.

22 Basis of consolidation
The the ial of the Group and its as at 31 D ber 2013.A list of the companies included in the
consokdation is shown in Note 24,

are fully i from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consalidated until the date that such
control ceases. The of the are prep for the same reportlng period as the Parent Ci using ing policies. All
intra-group balances, income and expenses, unreatised gains and losses and di g from intra-group are eli in fuil.
A change in the interest of & y, without a change of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction

Losses are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabikities of the subsidiary

Derecognises the carrylna amount of any non-controlling interest

D the differences, in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the falr value of any investment reteined

Recognises any surplus or defici in profit ar loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of previously in ather P income to profit or loss

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

A. Revenue recognition

The Group its against spacific criteria In order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as
ap inallofits The specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

a) Sales of goods

Revenue comprises the fair value of the or from the supply of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown
inclusive of the WEEE (Waste Elactrical and El i 's ) lewy to and net of value added tax, retums, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group. Income from the supply of goods is as soon as all risks and rewards relating to the litle of the goods has been transferred to

the customer.

The Group recagnises revenue when the amount of revenue can be refiably itis that future benefits will flow 1o the entity and when specific
criteria have been met. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably until all relating 1o the sale have been resalved. The Group bases
its estimates on historical results, taking into the type of the type of and the ifics of each

b) Interest income
Interest income is when it is p that the benefits with the will flow to the entity and the amount can be measured reliably,
using the effective interest method.

B. Foreign cunencles

ftems in lhe | of each of the Group's entities are measured using the cumency of the primary econamic environment in which the entity
(ihe ). The are in Euros, which is also the parent s and p

being the in which the 's share capital is denominated.

Foreign i are into the i using the rates p ing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and

losses g from the of such i and from the aty d mles of y assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

cumencies are tecognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as quakfying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or foreign
cumency differences on long-term loans relating to the of p .

The resutts and financlal position of afl the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the pi i are intothe p

a) assets and liabiities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,

b) income and expenses for each income are at rates (unless this ge is not a ion of the

effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income nnd expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the (ransaﬂlons) and

c)all g diff are as a sep of equity.

d) the resufts and financial position of Havells la C.A. are at the market rate mlher than the official rate due to the hyper-inflationary economy,
The change from the official rate to the market rate for was in the Y of other pi income in equity.

C. Property plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of iation and/or losses, if any. Such cost includes the cos! of replacing part of the

plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long term canstruction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Depreciation is based on acquisition cost . Land Is not depreciated. Depreclation on assels is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values from thelr acquisition date over the estimated useful econsmic kves as follows

Buitdings 20-39 years

Machinery 5-15 years

Other assets 3-5 years

The assets’ residual velues and useful lives are revi , and adj; if appropri at each balance sheet date

An asset’s camying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's camying amount is greater than its estimaled recoverable amount,

Depreciation on assets under construction is not charged until the asset is ready to put to use.

Assels disposed of in the year are depreciated 1o the date of disposal. Gains and losses on di Is are ined by ing the with the camying amount
and are recognised within ‘Other expenses’ in the income statement.
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Interest expenses are capitalised for the period of production of qualifying assets. Capitalised interest is calculated on the basis of an average interest rate, taking
payments and the period of manufacture into consideration.

D. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-curent assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their canying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-curent assets
and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their canying will be rincipally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or di group Is for sale In its present condition. Management

must be commitied to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within ane year from lhe date of classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised

E. intangible assets

a) Goodwill

Goodwll represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
on of is in ‘i assels’. goodwill is tested for (see Note 4) and

canied at cost less losses. is by the ble amount of each cash nenemllng unit to which the goodwil

relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount an loss is losses on are

not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating 1o the entity sold

b} Brands

Brands were acquired as part of the Sylvania Group and are stated at fair velue. The fair values of acquired identifiable intangibles are based on an assessment of lulure
cash flows. The various Brands have been in existence for perods up to 100 years, and there is every ion to i ing them. Ci itis

that the Brands have an Indefinite life and are not Instead testing is and wh a triggering event has occurred to determine

whether the camying value exceeds the recoverable amount (see Note 4).

c) Computer software

Acquired p licences are on the basis of the costs incumed to acquire and bring to use the specific sofiware, Thesa costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives (three to five years),

Costs with or are an as Incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the
development of identifiable and unlque software products controfled by Ihe Group, and that are mom than likely to ic benefils ing costs beyond
one year, are recognised as Intangible assets. Costs include the ployee casts and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Comp costs as assels are over their useful lives (not exceeding three to five years).

Gains or losses arising from of an asset are d as the difference the net di: p and the canying amount of the asset

and are recognised in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

F. Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested ly for and when indicate the
carrying value maybe impaired. Assets that are subject to i are reviewed for events or in indicate that the oavrylnq
amount may not be An loss is I for the amount by wnk:h the asset's carrying amount its ble amount. The

amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the of assets are grouped at the lowesl levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash units). In value in use, the estimated future cash flows are dlscounled to their present value using a

pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument marke( assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. [n determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

losses of are in the income in those exp with the function of the impaired asset. Non-
financia! assets other than that an are reviewed for reversal of the impaimment at each reporting date. The reversal is limited so that
the camying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the canying amount that would have been detenmined, net of depreciation, had no
loss been for the asset in prior years.
G. Research and development
h costs are as D ividuat project are recognised as an intanglble asset when the Group can demonstrate:
-The ical feasibilty of the assel so that lhe sssel will be available for use or sale

- lts intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset
- How the asse! will generate fulure economic benefits
- The availabliily of resources to complete the asset

- The ability to measure reliably the i during
Fi g Initial ion of the i as an asset, the asset is camied at cost less any and
losses. Amonlsaunn of the asset beglns when developmenl is complete and the asset is for use. It is i over the period of expected future benefit.

Amortisation s recorded in cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impainment annually.

H. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Cost incurred in bringing each product to #s present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
Raw Material - Purchase cost on a first in , first out basis.

Finished goods and Work in prog Cost of direct and labour, plus attributable overheads based on normal levels of activity, but excluding borrowing cost
value rep the esti selling price less direclly selling net of for of ies where

Provisions are made for slow moving and obsolete stock of the direct costs plus the appropri d less any d net from di |

I Financial Instruments

(a) Financial Assets

Financial assels within the scope of [AS 38 ﬂm classified as financial assets at fair value lhmugh profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets, or as deri as hedging inan hedge, as approp The Group the i ion of its
financial assels al intia) recognition

All financial assets are recognised inltially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly atiributable transaction casts

The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits (Note 9) and trade and other receivables (Note 8) and derivative financial instruments (Note .

The Group assesses at each reporllng date whether there is any i rid lhal a ial asset or a group of assels is A ial asset or a
group of ial assets is d to be if, and only if, there is objectt of as a result of one or more events that has occumed after the
initial recognition of the asset (an lnwrred 'loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the rnanclal asset or the group of financial
assels that can be reliably esti of may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter or other ion and where observable data indicate
that there is a in the estit future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that comelate with defaults.

I
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets camied at amortised cost, the Group first whether abj of exists for assels that are IndeualIy
or i for assels that are not individually significant. If the Group ines that no objecti id of exlsts for an individ
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with simifar credit risk ics and y them
for impairment. Assets that are indi for and for which an loss is, or L to be, are not ina i
assessment of impaiment.
If there is objecth i that an loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present vatue of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interes! rale, the di rate for ring any loss s the current
EIR.

The camying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss Is recognised in profit or loss. Interest lncnme continues to be accrued

on the reduced camying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purp of the loss. The

interest income is recorded as finance income in the income Loans with the iated are wrmun off when there is no realistic prospact of

future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transfered to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the esti loss or

decreases because of an event ing after the was the pi y foss s ar reduced by adjusting the

allowance account, If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited 1o finance costs in the income statement.

A financlal asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar assets) is 0 when

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has an obligation to pay the tved cash flows in full without material delay to a third

party under a ‘pass-through' arangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
nor i all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transfeed control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset s recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing invaivement n the
asset

In that case, the Group also recognises an assoda(ed Ilablmy The transferred asset and the associated liablity are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has that takes the form of a over the asset, is at the lower of the originat

carrying amount of the asset and the amount of that the Group could be required to repay.

(b} Financial Liabilities

Financia! liabikties within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabikities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and or as derivatt as

hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group the ion of its liabllities at initia) nscoanluon

All financial liabllities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Gmups financial habilities include trade and other payables, bank rdraft, loans and £ and derivati The Group has designated
as ial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 7). Trade and other payables (Note 11), bank overdraft (Note 12), loans and

borrowings (Note 12) are designated as loans and bormowings.

Subsequent measurement

The of liabliities dep on their ion as below.

Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liablities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, inlerest bearing loans and are at E cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as wel as thmugh the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any orp on and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the income statement

A ial liability is when the obli under the liabikity is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same fender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabllity are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original fiability and the recognition of a new liabllity, and the differenca in the ive camying is in the income statement

J. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits hekd at call wih banks, other short-term highly liquid invesiments with original maturities of three months or fess,
and, for the purp of the 2 of cash flows, bank overdrafis. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.
K Leases

The determination of whether an arangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the of the at i ion date, whether fulfiiment of the

amangement is dependent on the use of a specific assets or assets or the amangement canveys a right to use the assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
amengement

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January, 2005 in ing with the q of IFRIC 4.
Finance Leases

The Group leases some assels where the risks and rewards Incidental to ownership are largely transferred to the Group. These assets are capitalised and recognised in
the balanca sheet at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the di: value of the lease The lease payable are broken down
into and interest P based on a fixed interest rate and equal The lease are carried under liablities exclusive of interest. The

interest component s recagnised In the income statement in accordance with the lease instalments The relevant assels are depreciated over the remaining useful lives or
the lease ierm, if this is shorter.

Operating feases

Lease contracts for which a significant part of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the assets does not lie with the Group, are recognised as operating leases.
under op: leases are on & straight-ine basis in the income slatement over the term of the contract. The determination of whether an

annngemenl is, or contains, a lease is based on the of the at ion date: whether fulfilment of the arangement is dependent on the use of a

specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

L Borrowing cost

Barrowing cost directly to the G ar ion of an assets thal necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended

use or sale are capitalised as a part of cost of the assets All other borrowing costs are expenses in the period in which they occur, Borrowing cost consisted of interest ,
other cost that an entity incur in connection with the barrowing of funds.

M. Provisions

General

Provisions are formed for legally or i i existing on the balance sheet date, the settiement of which Is likely to require outflow of resources

and the extent of which can be reiiably estimated. Where the Group expects some or all of a p to be for under an contract, the

is as a sep asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually cenaln The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income

net of any rei If the effect of the time value of money is ial, the provisk are over the life of their expected cash flows, where

appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liability. Where discounting is used, the in the provision due to the of time is as a finance cost.

Restructuring provisions

The provision for restructuring relates 1o the estimated costs of lmtlaled reorganlzahons that have been approved by the Board of Managemen( and which involve the

realignment of certain parts of the ing, seliing and ‘When such i require di and/or closure of lines of

activities, the anticipated costs of closure or di i are in i i A liability is for those costs only when the Company has a

detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation with thase nﬂecled that it will camy out the ing by starting to that plan or

announcing its main features to those affecled by it.
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Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE)

The Group is a provider of electrical equipment that falls under the EU Directive on Waste Electrical and El The directi waste

management of equipment sold to private households prior to a date as determined by each Member Stale (historical waste) and waste management of equipment sokd to

private households after that date (new waste). A prowi: for the exp costs of of ical waste is when the Group participates in the

market during the period as by each Member State, and the costs can be reliably measured. These costs are recognised as other operating

costs in the income statement.

N. Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

Group companies operate various penslon The as funded through pay to or trust: i funds,
by periodic The Group has both dafined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which

the Group pays fixed contributions intc a separate entity. The Group has no lega! or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the curent and prior pericds. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one of more
factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pensbn plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less
the fair value of plan assets, with for vice costs. The defined benefit obligation is ly p

using the projecied unit credit method. The present value of the defined benel‘ it ion is by ing the future cash outf} using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the cumency In which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from i j and in rial are or credited to equity in the statement of comprehensive
income In the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Gmup pays to publicly or p pension plans on a Y or y basis.
The Group has no further ions once the have bean pald The i are as employee benefit when they are due
Prepald contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a in the future is Habl

(b) Other post employment obligations

Some Group provide post benefits to their retirees. The entitlement lo these benefits is usually conditional on the employee completing a
minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined
benefit pension plans. Acluarsial gains and losses arising from and in are chamed or credited to equity in the
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. These obligations are valued y by qualified

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal reti date, or an empl accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is i to either: inating the employ! of current employ
according to a detailed formal plan without possibllity of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a resuft of an offer made to Y

Benelfits faliing due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date are discounted to Iheir present value.

(d} Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a fonmula that takes into ion the profit to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adj The Group a provision where obliged or where there is a past practice that has crealed a constructive
abligation.

0. Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enaded or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company's
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. it taken in tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations is subject to P and i p where approp on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income lax is provided in full, using the liability melhod an camry forward of unused tax losses and on porary diff arising the tax bases of

assels and liabilities and their camying in the However, the defemed income tax is not accounted for If it arises from initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or Hability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit o loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the ralated deferred income tax asset is reafised or the deferred income tax Hability is settled

Defemed income tax assets are recognised 10 the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on in and except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse In the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each rep g date and to the exient that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or pari of the defermed tax asset to be utilised. Unmwanlsed deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that i has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

g in ion to the

Deferred lax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off cument tax assets agalnst cumrent income tax liabliities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

P. Derivative instruments

Derivatives are initially at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

The fair velues of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in Note 7. The full fair value of a hedging derivalive is asa t
asset or liability when the remaining hedged item is more than 12 months, and as a curent asset or liabilty when the remalning maturity of the hedged item is less than 12
The Group utilises i to reduce in interest rates. The fair value of financial instruments is based on information available and
provided by i Ruti to Financial are not used for trading purposes.

Changes in fair value of those i will be reported in the ing result or equity depending on whether the fnanclal Ins(rumenl qualifies for hedge accounting
The accounting for gains and losses associated with changes in the 1alr value of the derivative and the effect on the will depend on its
hedge designation and whether the hedge is highly ive in ] in the fair value of cash flows of the asset or liabiiity hedged.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is
hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating la the ineffective postion is recognised in the income statement within ‘Finance Cost'.
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When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longor meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast ion is in the income statement. When a forecast ion is no longer exp d to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was in equity is to the income statement.

Cash flow hedges

The effective porlion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any
ive portion is i in the income as other i Xp!

as other pi income are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financia!
income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs.

If the forecas! transaction or fim commitment is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is transferred 1o the income

statement. [f the hedglng instrument explres or is sold, or without or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, any cunwlative
galn or loss previously g in other comp! income remains in other comprehensive income untit the forecest transaction or firn commitment affects profit or
loss.
Q. Government Grants
Govemment grants are not ] unti there is that the Group will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be
Govemment grants whose primary condition is that the Group should or ise acquire t assets are by ing the grant
from the asset canying value and transferred to the profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
R. Exceptional items

items are which due to their size or incit are i to enable a full understanding of the Group's financial performance. lems
which may be are charges, gains or losses on disp: of or i and charges relating to the acquisition

of subsidiaries and impairment of fixed assets.

24 C in and

The policies pted are with those of the previous financiaf year except as follows:

The ing policies are with those of the previous financial year, except for the 0 to IFRS ive as of 1 January 2013

The of the or ions is ibed below:

IAS 1 Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income - Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments to IAS 1 change the of items p d in other income (OCI). ltems that could be reclassified (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a

future point in time would be presented separately from ems that will never be reclassified. The affects p only and has no impact on the Group's
ial position or p

1AS 18 Employee Benefits (Revised)

IAS 19 (Revised 2011) other things, the accounting for defined benefit plans. Some of the key changes include the following:

8) All past service costs are racognised at the earlier of when the amendment/curtaiment occurs or when the related g or ion costs are Asa
result, unvested past service costs can no longer be deferred and recognised over the future vesting period.

b)The interest cost and expected retum on plan assets used in the previous version of (AS 19 are replaced with a net-interest amount under IAS 19 (Revised 2011}, which
is by the di rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset at the start of each annual reporting period

The amendment has no impact on Group ial position and p

IAS 19 (Revised 2011) also requires more extensive disciosures. These have been provided in Note 14,

IAS 19 (Revised 2011) has been appfied ively, with p i
a) The camying amounts of other assets have not been adj for in benefit costs that were included before 1 January 2013.
b) Sensitivity disclasures for the defined benefit obligation for comparative period (vear ended 31 December 2012) have not been provided.

IFRS 1 First-time A of F p

The amendment relates to severe Hypersinflation and removal of fixed dates for first-ti The ive for yaars i on or
after 1 January 2013. The amendment had no impact to the group.

IFRS 1 Loans ~ toIFRS 1

These require first-t) to apply the requirements of IAS 20 Accounting for Govemment Grants and D of A

prospectively to govemment loans existing at the date of transition to IFRS. The amendment is effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2013. The amendment
has no impact on the Group.

IFRS 7 — Of g Assets and Financlal Liabllities — Amendments to IFRS 7

These amendments require an antity to disciose information about rights to set-off and related (e.g., The would provide
users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting srrangemenls on an enmys financial position. The new are req for all

financial instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32 Financial The also apply to that are
subject to an enforceable master netting or simifar ags ive of whether they are set off in accordance with IAS 32. These amendments did not
impact the Group's position or p and become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013,

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but
rather provid on how to fair value under IFRS. IFRS 13 defines fair value as an exit price. As a result of the guidance in IFRS 13, the Group re-
assessed its poticies for measuring falr values, in parlicular, its valuation inputs such as non-performance risk for fair value measurement of iablities. IFRS 13 also requires
additional disclosures.

Application of IFRS 13 has not matedally impacted the fair vaie measurements of the Group. Additional di: where
relating to the assets and liabilities whose fair values were determined.
Falr value hierarchy is provided in Note 7.

quired, are provided in the individual nates

IFRIC 20 - Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine

This interpretation applies to waste removal (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining aclivity, during the production phase of the mine. The interpretation addresses the
accounting for the benefit from the stripping activity. The interpretation is effective far annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The new interpretation did not
have an impact on the Group.

The become ive for years on or after 1 January 2013.

1k
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IAS 28 in and Joint (as revised in 2011)
As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 Joint and IFRS 12 Di of in Other Entities, IAS 28 in A i has been IAS
28 inA and Joint Ve . and the ication of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates, The revised
standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2013 and has no impact on Group's position or
and P issued and by the EU
A and 1] i issued by the IASB/IFRIC and not endarsed by the EU and not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group's financial

statements are fisted below. This listing of standards and interpretations issued are those that the Group reasonably expects to have an impact on disclosures, financial
position or peformance when applied at a future date. The Group intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

IAS 32 Offsetting F Assets and F Liabllitles — to IAS 32

These clarify the of has a legally enforceable right to set-off. The amendments also clarify the application of the IAS 32 offsetting criteria
to settiement syslems (such as central clearing house systemns) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not These are not

to impact the Group’s position or p and become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IFRS 10 C IAS 27 Sep. f

IFRS 10 replaces the pnrﬂon of IAS 27 C L and Financia) that the ing for i i it also

addresses the issues raised in SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management fo
to ine which entities are and are req to be by a parent, P with the req that
p IFRS 10 is not expectad to have any impact on the cumrently held investments of the Group.

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 has no impact on Group's financial performance.
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

were in IAS 27. Based on the preliminary

IFRS 11 repl IAS 31 in Joint and SIC-13 Jointly Entitles — y C by \ IFRS 11 the option to
accaunt for jointly controlled entities (JCESs) using proportionate consoldauon Instead, JCEs lhal meet the deﬂmﬂnn of a joint venture must be accounted for using the
equity method. As there are no joint the i of this new standard will not have any impact on the Group’s position of p

and become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 all of the that were previously in IAS 27 related to L as wel as all of the that were pi ly
included in IAS 31 and JAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity's in Joint i and entities.
A number of new disclosures are also required, but has no impact on the Group's position or p This for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2014,

entities to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27

These are effective for ial years on or after 1 January 2014.
IAS 39 of D and ( ion of Hedge to IAS 39
These amendments provide relief from hedge ing when ion of a i as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The Group has not novated its derivatives during the currant period However, these

would be for future

Amount D for Non-F Assets to [AS 36 of Assets
These remove the of IFRS 13 on the disclosures required under IAS 36. In addition, these amendments mqulm disclosure of lhe
recoverable amaunts for the assets or CGUs for which impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the period. These are

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. These amendments may resutt in additional disclosures in the Group's future financial statements.

Standards and interpretations issued but not endorsed by the EU

Standards Issued but not yet endorsed by the EU and not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s financlal statements are kisted below. This listing of
standards and intemretations issued are those that the Group reasonably expects to have an impact on di position or when applied at a
future date. The Group intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 8, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of IAS 38 and applies to and of assets and financial

liabiiities as defined in IAS 39. The standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but to IFRS 8 y Effective

Date of IFRS 9 and T Di issued In D 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to 1 January 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB is
hedge and of assets. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 8 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the

Groups financial assats, but will not have an impact on ion and of the Groups financial liablities The Group will quantify the effect Iin conjunction

with the other phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued

{FRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liabiiity for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relcvanl leglstation, occurs, Fur a levy that is
triggered upon hing a , the clarifies that no liabifity should be anticipated before the sp is

IFRIC 21 is effective for annual pesiods beginning on or aﬂer1 January 2014. The Group daes not expect that IFRIC 21 will have material financial impact in future financial
statements.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 14 was issued to provide first-time adopters of IFRS with relief from derecognising rate-regulated assets and liablitles until a
such assets and liabilities is completed. This is not relevant to the Group, since the Group is not a first-time adopter.

pi ive project on ing for

Annual Improvements to IFRSs — Cycles 2010-2012 and 2011-2013
In December 2013, the IASB issued two cycles of annual improvements to (FRS that contain to nine The are ive from 1
July 2014 elther p i or pectively. The is in the process of evaluating the impact of these changes.

m



Havells Malta Limited

Report and lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 December 2013
2.5 Critical ing and judg
and are i and based on historical experience and other factors including expeciations of future events that are believed to be
under the
The Group makes esti and ing the future. The i [ will, by ition, seidom equal the refated actual results. The
and ions that have a risk of ceusing a material adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
The Group made in its ing policies in the following areas:
Impairment of non financial assets
An impairment exists when the carying value of an asset or cash unit its ble amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use. The fair value Jess costs to sell is based on Hable data from binding sales transactions in an ann's length transaction of simifar assets or

abservable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow moade}. The cash flows are
derived from the budget for the next five years

The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expecied future cash inflows and the growth rate
used for polation p The key used to the amount for the different cash ing units, ing a itivity analysis, are
further explained in Note 4. See Note 3 for details of in prop plant and

The camying value of intanglble assets are assessed based on projections of future cash flows. See Note 4 for detalls of the impairment exercise performed by
management.

Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in isdi Sh is in the provi for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination ls unceriain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabikties for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matiers is different from the amounts that were inttially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred lax assets are recognised for all unused 1ax losses o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised
S Is req to the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of fulure
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategles.

The Group has tax loss cany forwards amounting to € 251 million. (2012: €275 mikion). These losses refates to subsidiaries that have history of losses, do not expire and
may not be used to offset taxable income else where in the Group. The subsidiaries have no taxable temporary differences nor any tax planning opporiunities available that
could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this basls, the Group has determined that i cannot recognise defared tax assets on the tax
losses camied forward. If the Group was able to all tax assels, profit would increase by €74 miltion (2012 €79). Further details on taxes
are disclosed in Note 5.

Fair value measurement of financlal instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and liabikties in the of position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active

markets, their fair value is d using q The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not

feasible, a degree of is req in fair values. include of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatikty.

Pension

The Group has various pension plans covering eligible employees. The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post employment medical benefits and the present

value of the pension ion are using An rial involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of

the discount rate, future salary increases, mortakty rates and future pension increases. Due to the of the the jons and its long term

nature, a defined benefit obii is highly ive to in these All are reviewed at each date.

In the app rate, the interest rates of corporate bonds in the respeciive cumency wkh at least AA mting, with
i to the exp duration of the defined benefit abligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality, and those having

excessive credit spreads are removed from the population of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality bonds.

The moriality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future
inflation rales for the respective country.

Detalls of the i and relating to these pension plans are included in Note 14.

Plant, Property & Equipment

The group charge the depreciation on assats using the straight-ine method 1o allocate thelir cost to their residual values from thelr acquisition date over the estimated
useful economic lives. At every year end, the estimated useful kfe of assets are assessed. In 2013, the group changed the estimated life of plant & machinery from 5-10
years to 5-15 years. This change in estimated useful life has Impacted the current year profit & loss by €1,221.

Provisions
The Group has various provi the final of which is details of which are included in Note 13.

2.6 Risk management

The Group's multi-national operations have a number of financial risks associated with them  The Group has detailed policies and procedures in place to mitigate these
The following risks are considered by the Directors to be associated with the operation of the Group:

Strategic risks

The Group operates in very compelitive market conditions. The Group competes in markets in which there are large global who g on price,
service, innovation and other factors. Asian i are ing on price wihin Europe and other key markets. The Group's competitors are well
financed and aggressively seeking market share.

The Group depends on a number of key customers for a significant portion of the business and a change in a { or coukd harm
the Group's business. To mitigate these risks, the Group actively monitors the market to ensure that our praducts are as competilive as possible.

Supply Chalin risks

The Group relies on a variety of third parties to supply a ion of finished p and The failure of one or more to meet its

could adversely affect the Group's ability to meet forp ich in prices from suppliers could affect the Group's performance. To
mitigate this risk, the supply chain maintains close relationships with each of our suppliers and has more than one supplier for almost all products.

Legal risks

The Group is subject to numerous risks in legal proceedings in which the Group are cumently participants or could become so in the future. The Group is or has been
subject to fawsuits, claims or p L ing A issues, | property, product liabikity and personal injury. The Group records a
provision when (1) a present obligation as a result of a past event exists; (2) it is probable that a payment of some type will need o be made to settle the obligation and (3)
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The Group actively its i with the reg Yy . in which it operates and tries

through a variety of p

g policies and provi to avoid situati that could result in legal proceedings.
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Regulatory risk

The Group is subject to a variety of reg Y those related to tariffs and trade bamiers (such as anti-dumping duties), health and safety,
ion, tax, and i Each country has a different and constantly changing regulatory regime. Changes in either the enforcement or

structure of any of mese regulations could adversely affect the Group's business. The Group monitors these risks through participation in various industry forums, and
through with and g

The Group uses various raw In its p that are subject to on use and di All of the Group's manufacturing
faclities use that meet g q and industry standards (such as ISO 9001 and 14001). Operations in Europe are
also required to comply with the WEEE directive (Waste Electrical and El i ) and all p sold in Europe are RoHS (Restriction of the Use of Certain

Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electranic Equipment) compiant

Financial risks

The Group's activities expose It to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Group's overall isk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks 1o minimise the potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments and natural hedges to hedge cerain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the caniral freasury department guided by the treasury policy. Group treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group's operating companies.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk lhal coumamany will not meet s obligati under a i or contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to
credit risk from Its trade ivables) and from its cliviti i p with banks and i foreign
and other
Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to credit risk
Credit quality of a is based on an credit rating and individual credit limits are defined in with this
=] i are reg y Trade les amount to € 109,848 (2012: €111,393) al 31 December 2013. Details on overdues and
impatmment are included in Note 6.
The req for is at each dale on an indi basis for major clients. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables are grouped
into groups and far The is based on actual d data. The P! to credit risk at the

reporting date is the camying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 6.
The Group does not hold collateral as security. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Liquidity risk

The Group requires efficient and cost effective financing in order to operate in the capital markets (such as the recent sub-prime
mortgage problems in the United States) could increase our cost of capitat or limit ourfnandal ﬂexlblny fn 2012, the Group entered into new loan agreement of €77,500 at
Euribor + 3.50% pa interest rate with banking group HSBC, ICIC| and Standard Chartered Bank which will be paid in six half yearly and a bullet on
May 2018 , this funding was primarily used to repay ts term foan borrowing with Barclays Bank which was 1o be expired in 2013 . In 2013 the Group has avalled fresh loan
amounting to € 12,000 from Standard Chertered Bank at Euribor + 3.75% pa which will be paid in six half yearly instaliments starting from March 2016. The Group Is, on an

ongalng basis, the with the of this facHity. The covenants primarily relates to EBITDA and net debt related financial ratlos for
the quarter and year-end period. in addition the Group has a number of other d and faciities, of bank and working
capital loans.

To ensure payment ability and financial flexibilty, a iquidity reserve in the form of credit lines as well as cesh resources are maintained.

As perD 31,2013 the facllities to €29 milllon.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabiities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
|Particulars Aging Aging
As at Dec 2013 As at Dec 2012
€ '000 (Within 1] 1-6 Year > 5 years Total Within 1 Year | 1.5 Year > §years  |Total
Year
Trade and other payables 125,382 - - 125,362 113,757 - - 113,757
(Other financial liabilities 430 . - 430 643 . - 843
Interest  bearing loans  and 26,803 80,360 - 87,163 32,100 62,863 - 95,063
rowi
Total 162,595 60,360 - 212,955 146,600 62,963 - 209,483

Foreign exchange risk

The global operations expose the Group lo foreign risk in the ordinary course of Forelgn risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabikties and net in foreign operati The main foreign exchange risk for the Group is the Euro against the US Dolar
and Pound Stering. rate { may create and unp and cash flow volatility due to the fact that a large number of the
companies in the Group have a different than the Company. The treasury has a numbar of policies and mechanisms that t employs to

mitigate the risk of a shift in foreign exchange rates impacting the profitability of the Group.

The Group's maln foreign exchange exposures are against the US Dollar and the Pound Stering If the US Dollar had strengthened by 10% against the Euro at the end of
2013, with all other variables held constant, the Net Assets of the Group would have decreased by €395 (2012 € 336) on translation into Euro. A similar strengthening of
the Pound Sterling against the Euro would lead 1o an increase in Net Assets of €445 (2012: € 213). Upon translation into Euro, the operating profit for the year would have
increased by €456 (2012 € 478) as a result of the US Dollar strengthening by 10% against the Euro over the year whereas the impact of a similar strengthening of the
Pound Sterling would have been an increase in the operating profit by €242 (2012 € 89)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings as the Group has no si int t-bearing assets i issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. During the period the Group's borrowings &t variable rale were mainly denominated in Euro

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interes! rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the ecenomic effect of converting
borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises fong-term borrowings at floating rates and swaps them into fixed rates that are lower than those

avaitable if the Group borrowed at fixed rates directly. Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to at intervals
quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest by to the agreed notional amounts.
The Group has hedged the interest exp 76% of iis bor For details on the interest rate hedge see Note 7. Far the unhedged portion of the

borrowings, a change in EURIBOR of 1% would have led to a increase/decrease in income before tax of €198 for the year



Havells Malta Limited

Report and lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 December 2013
Capital risk
The Group's when capita! are to the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide retums for shareholders and benefits

far other stakehotders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

in order to maintain or adjust the cepital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capiel to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is as total g:

‘current and non-curent borrowings' as shown in the i of position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as
shown in the L of position plus net debt.

The gearing as at 31 December 2013 was as follows:

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Total borrowings (Note 12) 81,457 88,277
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) (19,786) {15,138)
Net Debt 61,671 73,138
Total equity 60,428 83,834
Total capital 122,099 136,972
Gearing ratio 51% 53%
Exceptional general and (0) 25,283
administrative expenses
Total Equity before Exceptional expenses 105,975 108,315
Total Capital before Exceptional expenses 167,648 182,453
Gearing ratio before Exceptional expenses 3% 40%
Financial Instruments
The Group in treasury 1o mitigate the risks ¥sted above. This is primarily covered through interest rate swap options. No speculative instruments are

allowed by the Group's Treasury Policy.
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€'000s Land and Machinery and Other fixed Assets under Total
buildings equipment assets construction
Cost
At 1st January 2012 Restated* 58,964 43,129 4,653 1,548 108,285
Additions 2,821 1,354 888 1,378 8,441
Exchange Differences 288 304 35 ] 841
Disposals (948) (9,081) (278) - {10,305)
Reclassification 18,168 145,994 7.858 (357 171,863
Capitalized during the year 78 793 26 __ (897} -
As at 315t December 2012 Restated® 79,381 182,493 13,182 1,679 276,735
Additions 1,285 1574 766 1,508 5,144
Exchange differences (808) {4,872) {453) {40) (6.273)
Disposals (195) (15,838) (550) - (16,583)
Capitalized during the year 133 1,663 (3) (1.783) 0]
As at 315t December 2013 79,806 164,820 12,942 1,386 259,023
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 Restated® (17.667) (39,144) (4,633) - (61,444)
Depreciation charge (4.,046) (2.871) (138) . (7.055)
Impainment @1) (2,776) (57) - (2,854)
Reclassification (29,438) (138,516) {5,708) - {171,682)
Disposals - 8,874 250 - 9,224
As at 315t December 2012 Restated* (61,172) (172,333) {10,286) o (233,791)
Depreciation charge (974) {3,183) {1,080) - 6.217)
Impairment - (38) - - 38)
Exchange difference 144 4,710 370 - 5,224
Disposals 175 15,725 544 16,444
As 315t December 2013 (51,827) {165,119) (10,432) - (217,378)
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 27,979 9,801 2,610 1,366 41,645
As at 31st December 2012 Restated® 28,209 10,160 2,896 1,679 42,944
*Centaln numbers shown here do nol to 2012 ial and reflect made as detalled in note no 28.

Plant and machinery with a camylng value of € NIL (2012: €34) are financed by capital leases.

In the year, depreciation expense of € 2,738 (2012: €4,833) has been charged in cost of sales, € 1,195 (2012: €833) in distribution expenses, € 357 (2012: €212) in selling
expenses and € 927 (2012: €1,077) in general and administrative expenses

During the year, of plant and y and other assets were due to in ¥c conditions and phasing out of the products because of
change in legal environment in which the entity ting in ble values being fess than the camying value. The impalment of €38 relates to Plant &
Machinery in Concord, UK .(PY 2012 € 2,333 relates to plant and machinery and other fixed assets in Colombia, €500 relates to plant and machinery in Edangen and €21
relates to other countries).

Propesty, plant and equipment amounting to € 35,111 are ifically pledged for gs (see Note 12). In 2012, prop plant and equip ing lo € 20,350
were specifically pledged under an agreement signed on 13th March 2007 for borrowings of €120,000 which had been repaid in full during 2012,
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Intangible assets

€°'000s Goodwill Brands Software Total
Cost
At 1, January 2012 Restated* 10,308 21,536 2,069 338
Additions - - 767 787
Reclassifications - - 4,832 4,832
Exchange differences - - 2 2
At 31, December 2012 Restated® 10,306 21,5636 7,670 39,512
Additions - - 59 59
Disposals - - (28) (28)
Exchange differences - - (42) ‘42
At 31, December 2013 10,306 21,636 7,669 39,501
Accumulated depreciation
At 1, January 2012 Restated* - - {1,663) {1,663)
Reclassifications - - {4,832) {4,832)
Amottisation charge - - (407) (407)
At 31, December 2012 Restated® - - (6,902) {6,902)
Disposals - - 23 23
Exchange difference - - 35 35
Amortisation charge - - (374) (374)
At 31, December 2013 - - {7,218) (7,218)
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 10,306 21,636 441 32,283
At 31, December 2012 Restated* 10,306 21,636 768 32,610
*Certain numbers shown here do not pond to 2012 fi and reflect adj! made as detailed in note no 26.
Amortisation expense of € 374 (2012 €407) has been charged to general and administrative expenses in the year.
Impalirment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUS) identified according to geographical area of operations.
A level y of the | is below:

31-Dec-13 J1-Dec-12
Europe 7,340 7.340
Americas 2,466 2,466
Asia 500 500

10,306 10,306
The ble amount is based on value-i lati and is higher by € 81,257, € 108,132, € 31,699 (2012: €129,086, €73,909 and €41,833) than
the camying amount for Europe, America and Asia CGU respecti . These i use pre-tax cash flow proj based on budgets and p
by g a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are using the esti growth rates stated below The growth

m(e does not exceed the Iong-lenn average growth rate for the lighting business in which the CGU aperates.

The key assumptions for goodwill impalmment testing and for each of the above CGU value in use calculations are a terminal growth rate of 1% (2012: 3%) and an average

discount rate of 7.50% (2012: 7.50%). The pre tax g rates to 8.89 % in 2013 ( 2012 8.13%). The calculations performed indicate that there is no
impairment of goodwil.
g grass margin based on past p and its exp i of market P The average growth rates used are

with the in industry repornts. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect the specific risks relating to the business and is determined using
weighted average cost of capital and market premium
Sensitivity to changes in assumplions
With regard to the assessment of value in use of the g i that no possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause
the camying velue of the unit to exceed its amount.
Impairment tests for brands

The key assumptions used for brands impairment testing are a tesminal growth rate of 1% (2012: 3%), 2 royalty rate between 0.25% and 2% (2012: 0. 25% and 2.0%) and
an average discount rate of 13.28% (2012  7.50%). The pre lax rates to 13.28% in 2013 ( 2012: B.13%).The calculations perfarmed indicate
that there is no impainnent of brands

The closing net camying amount for brands relates entlrely to the brand. The value Is higher by €5,895 ( 2012: € 50,185) than its camying amount.
gross margin based on past p and its i of market The g average growth rates used are
with the in industry reporis. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect the speclﬂc risks relalmg to the business and is based on
welghted average cost of capital and marke! premium. The royalty rates used are based on s exp ing the market of

brand in the market.

Sensitivity to changes in assu:
With regard to the assessmeant of value in use of brands, L that no ible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the
camying value of the unit to ialy exceed its amount.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Deferred income tax assets and liabifities are offset when there is a legafly enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
€°'000s

Deferred lax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities

31-Dec-13

12,870
2,143
15,013

31-Dec-12

12,533
4,838
17,174

Defermed tax kabiiity to be recovered after more than 12 months 11,634 9,319
Deferred tax kabitty to be recovered within 12 months 154 918
11,788 10,235
Deferred tax assets (net) 3,225 6,936
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabiiities during the year, without taking into the of within the same tax jurisdiclion, Is as follows'
€'000s Inventory Plant, Accruals Pensions Tax losses Others Total
Property &
Equipment
Deferred tax assets
At 31 December 2011 814 1,165 4,456 2,158 4,262 3,083 16,938
{Cl ited to income (700} 300 {3,008) 330 3,203 {1,188) (853)
Credited to equity - - - 1,025 - 181 1,186
At 31 December 2012 214 1,466 A48 3,513 7,565 2,976 1717
{Charg to income n (1.077) N 1,288 363 (1,799) {1.871)
redited/(debited) to equity - - - (237} - {50) (287)
At 31 December 2013 285 388 731 4,564 7,918 1,127 16,013
€°'000s Inventory Plant, ible assets F Others Total
Property &
Equipment
Deferred tax liabilities
At 31 December 2011 324 9,832 5700 - 1,082 16,038
C i to income 342 __(68,112) {101) - {832) (8,703)
At 31 December 2012 666 3,720 5,698 - 250 10,235
[ ( i to income {668) 1.181 - 1,228 (96) 1,645
Credited/(debited) to equity - - - (92) - (82)
At 31 December 2013 - 4,901 5,699 1,134 164 11,788

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses canied forward to the extent that the realisation of the retated tax benefit through future taxable profit is probable. The
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets in respect of losses amounting to € 250,510 (2012: €275,161). Of these losses camied forward € 85,399 (2012; €5,626) have a

finite period of utllisation that expire as follows

€°'000s

Until 2014
Until 2015
Until 2016
Until 2017
Until 2023

31-Dec-13

605
8,441
3,689
2,487

70,187
85,399

31-Dec-12
2473
8
160

2,955
5,626

—_— e

26
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Trade and other receivables (Current)

€'000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Restated®

Trade receivables 109,848 111,393

Less provision for impaimment (7.950) (6,6830)

Trade receivables net 101,698 104,763

Recelvables from related parties (Note 22) 108 180

Other recelvables 5,348 8,722

Total current receivables 107,160

*Certaln numbers shown here do not

p to 2012

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 22.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 45 {o 90 days.

Trade recaivables that form part of an invoice discounting arrangement total € Nit. (2012: €1,573).

Trade receivables that are pledged under the bank agreement total € 78,772 (2012: €79,893)

113,665

and reflact adjustiments made as detailed in note no 28.

iity. A further analysis of

that

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired based on the group of
trade receivables is provided below:
Gross trade Doubtful debts Net trade
€°000s €'000s €'000s
At 31 December 2012
Not pasi due 78,225 - 78,225
Past due but not individually impaired:
0 - 80 days overdue 23,329 354 22,975
Over 90 days overdue 8,808 5,243 3,563
Individually impaired amounis 1,033 1,033 -
Trade inthe sheet 111,393 6,630 104,763
Gross trade Doubtful debts Net trade
receivables provision raceivables
€ '000s €'000s €'000s
At 31 December 2013
Not past due 83,309 - 83,309
Past due but not individually impalred
0 - 60 days overdue 16,702 815 15,887
Over 90 days overdue 8,038 6,468 2,470
Individually impaired amounts 699 867 32
Trade in the sheet 109,648 1,25‘0 101,698
The individuall malnly relate to wholesalers, which are in dispute or in difficutt ft was
a portion of the to be d

The amount of receivables that would be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated is € 57 (2012: €13).

See Note 2.6 on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the Group manages and measures credit quality of trade receivables that are neither

past due nor impaired

The camylng amounts of the Group's trade and other are inthe o

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Euros 44,223 44,856
Sterling 12,857 15,003
US Doliars 16,081 12,765
Thai Beht 7138 6,317
Brazitian Rea! 6,764 5.021
Other 20,107 28,801
Total 107,150 113,665
The movement on the Group's pi for imp of trade is as follows
€ '000s
At 31 Decemnber 2011 5,526
Cumrent year provision 1,955
Cument year reduciion (248)
Wirite offs {442)
Recovery of bad debts {52)
Currency translation adjusiments )
Other {108)
At 31 December 2012 6,630
Cunent year provision 1,898
Cument year reduction 48
Write offs {520)
Recaovery of bad debts {85)
Currency translation adjustments {115)
Other {6)
At 31 December 2013 7.95¢

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does nei hold any collateral as security

7
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Financial instruments

As at December 31, 2013, the Group had an interest rate swap agreement in place with an amount of €80,519 (2012 €66,848). The conlract fix the floating rate
(EURIBOR) to fixed rate 0.84%. The contracts will expire on May, 2016.

Interest risk exposure is mainly related to long term loans. The Group seeks to limit this risk through the use of derivative Instruments which aliow it to hedge cash flow
changes by swapping floating rates to fixed rates, Changes in the fair value of interest rate swap contracts are recognised directly in the income statement. The currency of
the derivative is Euros.

The mark to market value recorded in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2013 was a Habiiity of € 430 (2012 € 643). The value is based on an extemal valuation

from HSBC, ¢ and ICICI bank. The change in the fair value has been in the of other p income in the current
year.
The terms of the interest rale swap contracts match with the repayment schedule. As a result, no hedge i arises ition through profit or loss.

are as p in Note 2.8
The cash flow hedges were to be highly ive and a net ised gain of €213 (2012: € 843), with a deferred tax assels of €50 (2012 € 161) relating to the
is in other p income.
The amount retained in other comprehensive income at December 31, 2013 are expected to mature and affect the income statement in 2018,
Fair values
Set out below is @ comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments that are carried in the financial statements
Carrying Value Fair Value
€'000s 2013 2012 2013 2012
Restated® Restated*

Financial assets
Cash and shor term deposits 19,788 15,139 19,786 15,139
Trade and other receivables 108,743 113,181 108,743 113,181
Derivative Financial at 407 484 407 484
fair value through profit or loss
Total 126,936 128,804 126,936 128,804
Financiai liabilities
Trade and other payables 125,362 113,757 125,362 113,757
Derivalives in effective hedge 430 843 430 643
Bormowings 80,130 86,468 80,130 86,469
Finance lease 1,327 1,808 1,327 1,808
Total 207,249 202,677 207,249 202,677
*Certain numbaers shown here do not to 2012 fi and reflect made as detalled in note no 28.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabliities is included at the amount at which the could be in a current willing parties,
other than in a forced o liquidation sale.
The and were used to esti the fair velues

Cash and short term deposits, trade and other receivable, trade payabie and other payable approximate thelr camying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

Long term fixed rate and variable rate borrowing are evaluated by the group based on parameters such as interest rates and specific country risk factors. Based on this

evaluation, the camying of were no{ different from their calculated fair values.

The group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties. Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market observable inpuls are mainly
interest rate swaps. The most applied include forward pricing and swap models, using present value The models

various Inputs including the credit quality of foreign spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying
commodity.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the y for i and di: the fair vahie of by

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are abservable, either direclly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

As at 31 December 2013, the Group held the following financial instruments carvied at fair value in the statement of financial position®

€'000s 31-Dec-13 Levell Level2 Leveld
Liabilities measured at fair value

Financial liabilities - recognised through OC|

interest rate swap 430 - 430 -
Assets measured at fair value

Financial asseis - recognised through profit or loss

Forward Cover 407 - 407 -

During the reporting period ended December 31, 2013, there were no Wransfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurement

€ '000s 31-Dec-12 Levell Level2 Leveld
Restated*

Liabilities measured at fair value

Financial liabiities - recognised through OCI

Inferest rate swap 643 - 643 -

Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets - recognised through profit or loss

Forward Cover 484 - 484 -

28
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Inventories

€'000s 31-Dec-13
Raw materials and consumables (at cost) 17,047
Work in progress (at cost) 1,466
Finished products and goods for resale (at cost or net realisable value) 85,406
Provisions (5,557)
Total net inventories 98,362

*Certain numbers shown here do not to 2012 fi ial

and reflact

The camying amount of inventories pledged as security total to €73,327 (2012: €70,836).

The cost of i and included in cost of sales amounted to € 226,437 (2012: €246,556). Write down of

cost of sales for the year amounted lo€1 894, (2012: €1,117).
Cash and cash equivalents

Group

€'000s

Cash at banks and on hand
Short term deposits

Company

€'000s
Cash at banks and on hand

31-Dec-13
59

3-Dec-12
Restated*
15133
1,599
86,205

{8.418)
96,519

made as detalled in note no 28.

31 =12

31-Dec-12
4

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months,

on the iate cash

of the Group, and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had avallable €28 milion (2012 € 26 million) of undrawn commitied borrowing facilties.

Cash and cash equivalents in the Group are spiit Into the following currencies.

Currency € '000s
Euros

Sterling

US Dotlars

Thai Baht
Brazilian Real
Other

10 Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

€'000s

Authorised shares:-

Ordinary shares (A class) of € 1 each
Ordinary shares (B class) of € 1 each

4% p shares of € 1 each

Issued and paid up

Ordinary shares (A class) of € 1 each

Ordinary shares (a class) ole 1 sach

4% p shares of € 1 each

31-Dec-13
9,765

363

4,916

240

793

3,709
19,786

31-Dec-13

4

@

170,000

o

4

o

141,212
141,268

31-Dec-12
3,058
1,208
5,894
51
1,349
2,881

15,138

31-Dec-12

46

170,000
170,046

456

141,192

141,238

As at 31 December 2013, the authorised share capital of the Company was 170,046,000 shares of a nominal value of €1 each, comprised of 45,999 "A" ardinary shares

(all issued and fully pald up), 1 "B" ordinary share ( issued and fully paid up) and 170,000,000

shares (issued and fully paid up

4% p
141,212,000; 2012 141,192,000). The preferenca shares have the right 10 receive a dividend of 4% p.a. if dividend is declaved by the General Meeling, but no right to
parlicipate in any surplus upon the dissolution of the Company other than the retum of nominal value. Preference shares may be redeemed on behalf of the board at any

time at nominal value. The holder of the preferenca shares have no right to demand redemption of their shares.

During the year, 20,000 4% non i p

The board of dil have p not to di any divk (2012: € Nil)

shares of €1 each have been issued to Havells Holdings Limited at par.

il
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11 Trade and other payables

Group

€°000s 31-Dec-13 3-Dec-12
Restated*

Trade payables 51,330 31,868

Amounts due fo related parties (Note 22) 27,085 31,356

Social security and other taxes 7.892 3,864

Other payables 8,281 6,457

Interest accrual 475 666

Other accrued expenses 29,209 39,345

asse

113,757

Company
€'000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Other accrued expenses 9 12

*Certain numbers shown here do not

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabiiities:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms,
- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months,
- Interest payable is normally settled quartery throughout the financial year.

For lerms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 22 and For explanations on the Group's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 2.6.

All current payables are due for payment within one year.

Trade and other payables in the Group are split into the following currencies:

and reflect adjustments made as detailed in note no 28.

Currency € '000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Euros 44,388 42878
Sterling 11,344 12,880
US Dollars 56,817 44,859
Thai Baht 858 1,300
Brazitian Real 2,575 2,652
Other 9,380 9,380
126,362 143,767
12 Borrowings
€'000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Current
Bank overdrafts 2 1.403
Interest bearing loans 23,773 27,688
Obligations under finance leases 343 435
24,118 29,626
Non current
Interest bearing loans 58,355 57,378
Obligations under finance leases 984 1,373
57,339 58,751

Borowings are stated after deduction of € 3,894 (2012: € 4,442) of deferred financing costs. Total issue cosis are amortised in the income statement at a constant rate to
comespond with the period associated with the borrowings to which they relate.

Bank overdrafts attract interest of between 4-8% for various cumrencies. The overdrafis and loans are secured against various assets of the Group as described below.

A term loan facility from HSBC, Standard Chartered and ICICI bank of €77,500 at EURIBOR + 3.50% p.a (linked with group leverage ratio) as a term loan repayable by
instaiments ending on May 2016. Mostgages on plant and property and pledge on trade receivable and inventories in France, 1 UK,

Argentina, Ecuador, Dubai, Greece, Thalland, Mexico, Brazil and Colombia as securily.

The group also entered into loan agreement on 14 March , 2013 with Standard Charlered bank for €12,000 at the rate of Euribor + 3.7511% p.a. which is payable in four
years. Central warehouse building located in France is pledged under this agreement.

in addition the Group has a number of committed and uncommitied faciities which i utilises for short term working capital requirements.

Bornowings are spiit inlo the following currencies:

Currency € '000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Euros 70,219 70,011
US Dotlars B,767 11,892
Other 2471 8,574
Total 81,467 88,277
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessee in the event of a default.

Finance leases € '000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Total minimum lease payments 1.501 2,088
less: amounts representing interest (174) (280)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 1,327 1,808
tess: current portion of minimum lease payments (343) {435)
N t partion of capitalised lease obligati 984 1,373

The Group also has lease on building & other fixed assels in Gemmany. The total amount outstanding on this lease is € 1,327 (€ 343 current, 984 € non-current) and in
2012 €1,808 ( €435 Current ,€1,373 non-current) ).

€ 1,327 of the finance leases are denominated in Euros (2012 €1,808).
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13 Provisions for other liabilities and charges
in total p are ified as follows
€'000s Onerous leases Restructuring Environmental Legal clalms Tax Total
At 1 January 2012 Restated* 585 2,235 3,753 3,080 1,482 12,035
Exchange differences 15 - - - (48) 33)
Additional provisions - - - 500 53 553
Amounts utifised (549) (1,550) (151) (500) (98) (2,848)
Unwinding of discount - - 65 - - 65
Reclassification - - - - 3,856 3,856
Credited to income statement - {455) - (856) (1,230) {2,541)
At 31 December 2012 Restated® 51 230 3,667 3,124 4,015 11,087
Current portion 35 230 132 1.000 3,856 5,253
Non Current portion 16 - 3,535 2,124 159 5,834
At 1 January 2013 51 230 3,667 3,124 4,015 11,087
Exchange differences (4] @) (9) (210) {30) (252)
Additional provisions 15 118 - 201 33 385
Amounts utilised (48) (144) (172) n - (435)
Unwinding of discount - - 53 - - 53
Unused amount reversed - - {1,100) {100) - {1,200}
At 31 December 2013 17 200 2439 2,944 4,018 9,618
Current portion 17 200 100 2,844 3,857 7.118
Non Current portion - - 2,339 - 161 2,500
*Certain numbers shown here do not P to 2012 fi and reflect made as detalled in note no 26.

The onerous lease provision relates to various sites in the UK that are no longer required by the Group. This is for a partly empty office in Manchester and will last untit
2014,

The restructuring provision relates to the remodelling of the business to ensure that we remain competitive in the curent economic scenario in Europe and expected to be
settled in 2014.

The P relates to i cosis at a number of manufacturing sites owned by the Group. €1,255 (2012 €1,332) of the environmental provisions
relates to water contamination at our factory in Belgium.

The tax provisions mainly relate to amounts against prior period tax claims relating to sales taxes In Brazil. They are expected to expire by 2014,

Legal claims provision are related to labour claim di in and VAT dispute in UK and Labour claims in Brazil related to factories closed in past and
expected to be setiled in 2014

Provi arise in the

Currency € '000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

Euros 3,847 4,755

Steding 17 51

US Dollars 193 243

Brazillan Real 5,076 6,038

Others 385

9,618 11,087
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Retirement benefit obligations
The Group has various defined benefit pension plans ring eligible emp in Thaltand, France, ltaly and the UK. Benefits are based on number of years
of service and the employee’s compensation. The Group's funding policy is consistent with the funding of law and ions In the various jurisdictions. The
Group also has a post retirement medical benefit plan in Switzerland and an early plan in which are
The measurement date for the Group's defined benefit pension, defined contribution plan and post retirement medical benefit plan is 31 December of each year.
The in the of position are:
€'000s 3-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Pension benefits and early retirement plan 39,877 42,052
Post retirement medical plan 680 743
40,657 42,795
The amounts recognised in the income statement are (Note 17)
€'000s 31-Dec-13 34-Dec-12
Pension benefits and early retirement plan 2,045 1,813
Post retirement medical plan 31 {2,775)
2,076 {962)
The inthe of position are
€°000s 31-Dec-13 I1-Dec-12
Present value of defined benefits plans
- Funded obligations 92,210 88,531
- Unfunded obligations 3,202 3,066
Total defined benefit obligation 95,502 91,597
Fak value of plan assets {59,279) {53,734)
38,223 37,883
Present value of other unfunded ohtligations 4,334 4,832
40,567 42,795
The expense/(income) recognised in the income statement are determined
€°'000s Defined benefit Post retirement Total
plans medical plan
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13
Cument service cost 507 - 507
Interest cost 1,538 3 1,570
Total included in staff costs (Note 17) 2,046 31 2,077
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-12
Curment service cost 418 - 418
fnterest cost 1,397 (132) 1,265
Curtaliments and settlements - (2,843) {2,643)
Total included in staff costs 1,813 (2,77ﬂ {862)
The actual retum on plan assets Is a profit of € 7,328 (2012 Profit of €8,307)
The mavement in obligations are as foliows
€'000s Defined benefit Early Post retirement Total
plans retirement medical plan
plans
31-Dec-12 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-12 _ 31-Dec-12
At 1 January 2012 82,181 4,490 3,594 80,245
Curtailment and settiements . - (2.643) (2,843)
Exchange differences 1,335 - 33 1,388
Curmen! service cost 459 - - 459
Interest cost 4,036 322 (132) 4,226
F in 7,058 - - 7.058
other comprehensive income
Benefits payment {3,452) {623) {109) {4,184)
At 31 December 2012 91,597 4,189 743 96,629
€'000s Defined benefit Early Post retirement Total
plans retirement medical plan
plans
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13 __ 31-Dec-13
At 1 January 2013 91,597 4,189 743 96,529
Exchange differences (1,130) - (1) (1,141)
Current service cost 548 - - 546
Interest cost 3,716 141 3N 3,888
in 4,308 - - 4,308

other comprehensl‘:e income
Benefits payment
At 31 December 2013

{3,535) (676)

(83) (4,204)

sss02 3654

680 99,636

£
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The movement in the fair value of plan assets over the year is as follows

€'000s Defined benefit Defined
plans benefit plans
31-Dec-13 3%-Dec-12
At 1 January 2013 53,734 47,001
Exchange differences (978) 1,130
interest Income 2,353 2,840
in 4,868 3,667
other comprehensive income
Employer contributions 1418 1,468
Benefits paid {2,114) {2,170)
At 31 December 2013 59,279 53,734

Asset holdings in the plan as at 31 December 2013 are as foilows:

UK Germany Total % Total plan
€'000s assets
Equities 21,812 - 21,912 7%
Diversified growlh assets 2,817 - 2,817 5%
Corporate bonds 2753 - 2,753 5%
Property 2,888 - 2,886 5%
Gilts 28,537 - 28,537 45%
Insurance contracts - 2172 21472 3%
Other 202 - 202 0%
Total market value of assets 57,107 2,172 59,279 100%
Asset holdings in the plan as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

UK Germany Total % Total plan
€'000s assets
Equities 30,185 - 30,185 56%
Corporate bonds 18,120 - 16,120 30%
Gitts 5,037 - 5,037 10%
Insurance contracts - 2,199 2,189 4%
Other 183 - 183 %
Total market value of assets 51,5635 2,198 53,734 100%
Where relevant and the used on the defined benefit plans were as follows:

2013 UK France Gemany Thailand
Discount rate 4.70% 3.75% 3.75% 4.50%
Future salary increases - 250% 2.50% 5.00%
Infiation rate 2.20% - 1.75% -
Future pension increases 2.20% - 1.75% -
Actuat return on plan assets 4.80% - 3.75% -
A the future L are set based on advice in with ished and in each temitory. Mortality
UK France Germany Thailand
Life expectancy rates as al balance sheet date
Male 21.2 - 185 -
Fermale 23.4 - 228 -
Life expectancy rates 20 years afler the balance sheet date
Male 225 - 212 -
Female 248 - 251 -
Ovenrall withdrawal rates (%) - 28 8.3 -
2012 UK France Gemany Thailand
Discount rate 4.80% 3.75% 3.75% 4.80%
Future salary increases - 3.00% 2.50% 5.00%
Inflation rate 1.80% - 2.00% -
Future pension increases 1.80% - 2.00% -
Actual return on plan assets 5.50% - 4.50% -
Life expectancy rates as at balance sheet date
Mate 215 - 185 .
Female 237 - 226 -
Life expectancy rates 20 years after the balance sheet date
Male 228 - 21.2 -
Female 252 - 251 -
Overall withdrawal rates (%) - 15.5 8.3 -
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for si as at 31st D 2013 as shown below:
Assumptions Discount rate  Inflation rate  Salary Increase  Mortality rate
Sensitivity level D of of of 0.25% in life
0.25% pa 0.25% pa pa expectancy by 1
ear
Impact on Net defined benefit 1,268 895 227 1,043
abligation
The sensitivity analysis abave have been determined based on a methods that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obli as a result of

in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan abligation at the end of the reporting period is 18 years,

The expected contribution to be made in 2014 is € 1,435,
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15 Income tax expense
€ '000s 31-Dec-13 J31-Dec-12
Current tax 3121 2,080
Deferred tax: (Note 5) 3,516 (5,750)
Origination and reversal of timing differences {57) 31
Total 6,580 {3,701)
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weigl ge tax rate f to profits of the
consolidated entities as follows:
31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Profit/(Loss) before tax 8,562 33,191
Tax at ic tax rates i to:
Havells Malta Limited (35%) 2,997 11,8617
Income not subject to tax ®,511) (8.980)
Differences in lax rates 1,768 534
not for tax purp 4,852 8,422
Uuhsalkm of previously unmooqnlsed losses (2,240) {18,350)
Cumrent year unrecognised tax losses 8,180 3,424
Other {476) (1,368)
Tax charge §,580 {3,701}

16

17

No provision for Maltese income tax has been made in these financial statements in view of the loss Incurred during the year.

Research and Development

costs as an in the income statement during the year amount to € 6,091 (2012 €5,536)

Employee benefit expense

The cast of sales, selling and administration expenses include wages and salaries, and social security costs. These can be broken down as follows

€'000s 31-Dec-13

Included in Cost of Sales

Wages and salaries (including termination costs 23,359

of € 21 (2012 € 88))

Other social security costs and 3,817

other empioyee benefits

Pension costs - defined contribution plans 235

Pension costs - defined benefit plans 420

Other post retirement benefits 84
28,015

€°000s 31-Dec-13

in Selling & [

Wages and salaries (including termination costs 28,914

of € 458 (2012: € 268))

Other social security costs and 7,357

other employee benefits

Pension costs - defined contribution plans 322

Pension costs - defined benefit plans m

Other post retirement benefits 217
37,981

€ ‘'000s 31-Dec-13

in

Wages and salaries (including termination costs 20,572

of €1,218 (2012 €1,211))

Other social security costs and 7.642

other employee benefits

Pension costs - defined contribution plans 260

Pensian costs - defined benefit plans 312

Other past retirement benefits 55
28,841

Total Employee benefit 94,837

The i the to the employees. For key

The Company had na employees in the year (2012: Nil).

Exceptional items included in op ing i
€'000s 31-Dec-13
Impairment of assets N
Litigation Receipt .
in op income -

3t-Dec-12

25,768

5,853

254
507
111
32,694

31-Dec-12

32,287
9,618

383
214

(3,179)
39,303

31-Dec-12

13,444
4,051

274
451
42
18,262

90,1569

details see Note 22.
During the year ended 31 December 2013 an avarage of 2,354 employees were employed by the Group (year ended 31 December 2012 2,352).

31-Dec-12
(2.854)
28,137

25,283

In 2012, Havell's Netherlands BV and FlowH International Lighting (Holding) BV (Havells Sylvania) entered inlo a settlement agreement with Osram Sylvania Inc and

OSRAM AG. The Settiement has confirmed and clarified the juri of the Sy brand. Osram Sylvania Inc. owns the Sylvania trademark in the US,
Puerto Rico, Canade and Mexk:o and Havells Sylvanla owns the trademark in the rest of the world. Further, both Parties will be entitled to and brand p
in each other's i the are i for sale in their own termitories. The Parties also agreed to withdraw ail pending litigations In various

jurisdictions and intend to coliabomle wnh each other to strengthen the brand in their respeclive teritories. In light of the allocation of rights, Havells Sylvania received a

globally for the benefit of both.

one-time fee of US $ 38 million. The parties are sati with the hed as it the

in

conditions and phasing out of the products

During the previ year, of plant and inery and other assels were due to
because of change in legal environment in which the entity

values being less than the camying value. Of the recognised impainnent, €

2,333 relates to plant and machinery and other fixed assets in Colombia, €500 relates to plant and machinery in Erlangen and €21 relates to other countries.
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Expenses by nature

€°000s

Changes in invantories of finished goods & work in progress
Raw materials and consumables used

Purchase of traded goods

Employee benefit expense (Note 17)

D, i y a

Transportation expenses
Advettising costs
Operating lease payments
Other expenses

Total cost of sales, selling, costs,
exceptional expenses

Contingencies

(a) Operating leases
Annugl amounts due under operating leases are as follows

€'000s

Tenn < 1 Year
Term 2.5 years
Term > 5 years

Of the operating leases, € 10,514 (2012 €13,610) relates to land and buildings, out of which the largest amount is for € 7,522 (2012 € 7,267) relates to the sites in UK

and of € 1,840 (2012 € 2,110) relates to the site in Genmany.

(b) Sub leases receivables

and

During the curent year, the empty in is further

Annual amounts receivable under sub lease are as follows
€'000s

Term <1 Year

Tenn 2-5 years

Term > 5 years

for the year ended 31 December 2013

31-Dec-13

158
86,323
159,955
94,837
5,628
13,711
10,231
2,705
58,070
412,620

31-Dec-13
2,674
5,892
6,855
15,221

31-Dec-13
247
288

535

Amount recognised in income statement for the year ended December 31, 2013 € 247 (2012 € 137)

Operating leases are spit into the following currencies:
Currency € '000s

Euros

Sterling

US Dollars

Brazilian Real

Other

(C) The Group's guarantees and securities total € 1,762 (2012 €1,838),

f and exp

€'000s
Interest income - 3rd party
Finance income

Interest expenses - bank borrowings
Interest - finance
Finance expenses

31-Dec-13
5,578
8,003
45
505

15,221

31-Dec-13
73
73

(4,801)
(1,381)
{6,192)

31-Dec-12

12,535
77,640
135,242
90,158
10,316
14,527
9,658
6,200
32,299

Ty 2

388,668

31-Dec-12
4,782
8,335
7.018

_ A

20,133

The sub lease will expire on February 28, 2016.

31-Dec-12
247
41

288

3-Dec-12
9,648
8,775
38

1,671
20,133

31-Dec-12
125
125

(6.843)
1,548
8,389)

H
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R d party

A) Name of related parties

The ultimate parent

The ultimate parent of the group is Havells India limited and is based and listed in India
Holding company

Havells Holdings Limited, Isle of Man

Entity under common control

Havells Exim Limited, a 100% subsidiary of the ultimate parent company.

Joint Venture in which ultimate parent is venturer

Jiangsu Havells Sylvania Lighting Co Ltd

8) Transactions with related parties :

€°000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
(i) Capital contributed by holding company 20 38,400
(i) Sales (net of retums) of goods to the uitimate parent (55) 139
{iii) Purchase of goods from the ultimate parent 451 308
{iv) Purchase of goods from entity under comman control 99,807 82,857
(v) Purchase of goods from Joint Venture in which ultimate parent is venturer 1,712 485
(vi) Loan avalled from holding company - 10,000
(vii} Loan repaid to holding company - 23,400

(vi) Key management compensation:

Short-term employee benefits i 395 514
Temmination benefits 841 233
Total key management compensation: 1,036 747
The above figures include compensation paid to the key either by the Company, a iary or a parent. Key management is
defined as the Board and Supe y Board.

The company has not paid any direclor fees in 2013 (2012: € Ni)).

(C) Year end balances:

€°'000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12

Recelvables from ultimate parent 108 180

Payables to ultimate parent (341) (243)

Payables to Havells Exim Ltd. (25,853) {30,619)

Payables to Jiangsu Havells Sylvania Lighting Co Ltd 871) (495)

(D) Terms and conditions

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prwa“ in anm's length O i atthe y d are
unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no or b for any related party receivables or payables, For the year

ended 31, December 2013, the Group has not of ivabls relaung to owed by related parties (2012 € Nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financia! year through examining the rnanclal position of the related parly and the market in which the related party operates

Auditor remuneration
€°'000s 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of parent company it's 221 810
Fees payable to the group's auditors and its associates for other services 21 17

Fees payable to the group's auditors and its associates for tax services: 48 271
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Group companies

Legal name

Havells Netherands Holdings B.V.

Havells Netherlands B.V.

SLI Europe B.V.

Sytvania Lighting International B.V.

Ftowil Intemnational Lighting (Holding) B.V.

Havells Sylvania (T| halland) Limited $
Havells Syl Limited

Havells Sylvania (Shanghai) Ltd

Havells Sylvania Asla Pacific Limited

Havells Sylvania (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Havells Sylvania Sweden A.B.

Havells Sylvania Finland OY

Havells Sylvania Norway A.S.

Havells Sylvania Fidures Nethedands B.V.

Havells Sylvania Lighting Belglum N V.

Havells Sylvania Belgium B.V.B.A.

Havells Sylvania Lighting France S.A.S

Havells Sylvania France S.A.S.

Havells Sylvania laly S.p.A.

Havells Sylvania Portugal Lda

Havells Sylvania Greece A.E.E.E

Havells Sylvania Spain S.A.

Havells Sylvania Germany GmbH

Havells Sylvania Switzerland AG

Havells Sylvania Tunisia S.A.R.L.

Havelis Sylvania Poland S.p. Z.o.0

Havells Sylvania Dubai FZCO

Havells Sylvania Brasil lluminacao Ltda.
Havells Sylvania Argentina S.A.

Havells Sylvania Export N.V.

Havells Sylvania Colombia S.A.

Havells Mexico S.A.de C.V.

Havells Mexico Serviclos Generales S.A. de C.V.
Havells Sylvania El Salvador S.A. de C.V.
Havells Sylvania Guatemala S.A.

Havells Sylvania Costa Rica S.A.

Havalis Sylvania Panama S.A.

Havells Sylvania Venezuela C.A.

Havalls Sylvania lluminacion (Chile) Ltda.
Havells Sylvania Peru SAC

Havells Sylvania N.V.

Havells Sylvania Europe Limited

Havelis Sylvania UK Limited

Havells Sylvania Fodures UK Limited
Havells Sylvania Holdings (BV1-1) Ltd
Havells Sylvania Holdings (BV1-2) Ltd
Havells USA Inc.

Panama Americas Trading Hub SA

PT Havells Sylvania Indonesia

Thal Lighting Assets Co Ltd #

Havells Sylvania South Africa

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Havells Sylvania TR Eelktrik Orunler Ticaret Limited Sirketi

Sylvania India Limited*

Country of Control held Share In Nature of

incorporation equity activity
Netherlands Direct 100% Holding
Netherands Indirect 100% Holding
Netherlands Indirect 100% Holding
Netherlands Indirect 100% Holding
Netherlands Indirect 100% Holding
Thaitand Indirect 100%  Trading
China Indirect 100% Trading
China Indirect 100% Trading
Hong Kong Indirect 100%  Trading
Malaysia Indirect 100% Trading
Sweden Indirect 100% Trading
Finland Indirect 100% Trading
Norway Indirect 100% Trading
Netherands Indirect 100% Trading
Belglum Indirect 100% Trading
Belglum Indirect 100% Trading
France Indirect 100% Trading
France Indirect 100% Trading
Italy Indirect 100% Trading
Portugal Indirect 100%  Trading
Greece Indirect 100%  Trading
Spaln Indirect 100% Trading
Germany Indirect 100%  Trading
Switzerdand Indirect 100% Trading
Tunisia Indirect 100% Trading
Poland Indirect 100% Trading
United Arab Emirates Indirect 100% Trading
Brazil Indirect 100% Trading
Amentina Indirect 100% Trading
Dutch Antiltes Indirect 100% Holding
Colombia Indirect 100%  Trading
Mexico Indirect 100%  Trading
Mexico Indirect 100%  Service
El Salvador Indirect 100%  Trading
Guatemala Indirect 100% Trading
Costa Rica tndirect 100%  Trading
Panama Indirect 100% Trading
Venezuela indirect 100%  Teading
Chile Indirect 100% Trading
Peru Indirect 100%  Trading
Ecuador Indirect 100% Trading
United Kingdom Indlrect 100% Trading
United Kingdom Indirect 100% Trading
United Kingdom Indirect 100%  Trading
usa Indirect 100% Holding
USA Indirect 100% Holding
USA Indirect 100%  Trading
Panama Indirect 100% Trading
Indonesia Indirect 100%  Trading
Thatand Indirect 48% Holding
South Africa Indirect 100%  Trading
Turkey Indirect 100% Trading
India Direct 100% Trading

#The Group holds 49% equity interest In "Thai Lighting Assels Co Lid". However the Group has majorily representation on the entities board of directors and the Group's

approval is required for all major

and the

that in

are solely caried out for the benefit of the Group. Based on these facts and circumstances,

* Shares of Sylvania India Ltd hava been sold to QRG Enterprises on 28th Oclober 2013,

the Group conlmls this entity and therefore has consolidated this entity in its financial statement.

25 The Gmup has one of its yin\ i.e. Havells which Is in hyper The of Havells
A is prep in lan Boul (local under cost As per the requirements of IAS 28 'Financiatl Reporting in
nypcl ies', the of Havells Sylvani have been ing the cument consumer price index based on
‘National cansumar Price lndex (CPJ). The level of the price index as at December 31, 2013 is 497.09 which is 56.13% higher as compared to previous year closing price
index of 318 80.
26 &1 ificati
A) The items of that have been reclassified and does not have any impact - on current and prior income cash flows
and position of the group:
S.No Particulars Reclassifications
1 |Notes to financial statement - 3 In respect of assets disposed off in prior years, the net book value of those assets had been reduced from the gmss biock without
and 4 the tn the curment year, the group has the inthe to
reflect the comect amount in nmss block by € 171,663 and accumulaled depreciation by € 171,683. Further, within the block of property,
plant and equipment, the group has done some for better of block of individual fixed assets.
2 |Notes to financial statement - 7 The group has outstanding forward contracts in current as well as previous year, which in the p year were 1

under "Trade and Other ivables” in the previ year of € 407. In lhe cumrent year, the group has reclassified
the forward contracts from "Trade and Olher to "D« for comect reflection of financial
in the
3 |Notes to financial statement - 11 |The group has unascartained liability in the form of "provision for disputed sales lax liability” which was emoneously disclosed under
and 13 “Trade and other in the previ year of € 3, 856 In the curren( year, the snld liability has been
reclasslified from "Trade and other to °F for correct of pi i in the
4 |C g income The group has disclosed certain distribution cost under "Selling in the previ year of €4,161. ln the

expenses in the financial statements.

cument year, the sald distribution cost has been reclassified from "Selling to "Di for correct of




Havells Malta Limited

Report and lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 December 2013
B) The items of | that have been restated and have an impact - on p! year income paosition and of change
in equity of the group:
S.No Particulars Restatements
1 |Statement of comprehensive In 2009, Venezuela qualifies for C Yy and i in respect of Havells Sylvania Venezuela, impac! of
income hyperinflation as per AS 29 had been computed and recorded twice In the financial statement. In the cumrent year, the group
management has comected the same which has impact on the and reserve. A gly, € 1,380

is debited to "Retained Eaming” and € 1,380 is credited to "Cumulativa transtation reserve” was done on the first day of earfiest
comparative period presenied as per IAS 1.

2 |Notes to financial statement - 8 & The group had the impact of ion on year on year basis fram 2010, however for each year the impact was not

B and not in the books in earlier years. In the current year, ive impact of ion has been
recorded respectively in the cument year, comesponding previous year and on first day of earliest comparative period |.e. Property, plant
& equipment € 18 (2012: € 8) (January 1, 2012: € 20), lnventory € 115 (2012: € 21) (January 1, 2012: € 11), Non Current Prepayment
€6 (2012: € 3) (January 1, 2012 € 4), Retained Eaming € -714 (2012: € -218) (January 1, 2012: € -375), Cumulative transiation
reserve € 714 (2012: € 248) (January 1, 2012: € 410).

27 Statutory Information

The ultimate parent Company is Havelis India Limited, a Company incorparated in India and kisted on the i and y stock The

Havells India Limited to be the controlling party by virtue of its controling interest in the Company's share capital The L ial of Havells India
Limited are the largest which the results of the Company that are publicly available. Coples of the Havells India Limited financial
statements can be obtained from Havells India Limited, 1 Raj Narain Marg, Civil Lines, Dethi 110054, India.

The C s iate parent is Haveils Holdings Limited, a Company incorporated in the Isle of Man
28 Events after the balance sheet date

No significant events occurred after the balance sheet date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HAVELLS MALTA LIMITED

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Havells Malta Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group™) set on pages 5 to 38 which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income statements, the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statements of changes in equity, and the consolidated cash flow statements for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

As described in the statement of directors’ responsibility on page 4, the directors are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the requirements of the Companies Act,
Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position as of 31 December 2013, and
of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the
Laws of Malta.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HAVELLS MALTA LIMITED - continued

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We also have responsibilities under the Companies Act, Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta to report to you if, in our
opinion:

The information given in the directors* report is not consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or that returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us.

The consolidated financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Certain disclosures of directors® remuneration specified by law are not made in the consolidated financial
statements, giving the required particulars in our report.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

;his copy of the audit report has been signed by

Anthony Doublet for and on behalf of

Ernst & Young Malta Limited
Certified Public Accountants

28 February 2014
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